MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST NR Eligible: yes

DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM no__
Property Name: St. Mary Anne's Church ST Inventory Number:  CE-102
Address: NW corner of S. Main St. & Church PointRd.  City: NorthEast Zip Code: 21901
County: Cecil - USGS Topographic Map: North East, MD B -
Owner:  Vestry of St. Mary Anne's Parish B o [s the property being evaluated a district?  yes
Tax Parcel Number: 257 Tax Map Number: 401 ~ Tax Account ID Number: 05061474
Project: ~ MD 272 from US 40 to Irishtown Road -- North East S Agency: SHA -
Site visit by MHT staff: X no yes Name: - Date:
Is the property is located within a historic district? X yes _ no
! If the property is within a district District Inventory Number: CE-1525

- NR-listed district yes Eligible district X yes  Name of District: North East Historic District

| Preparer's Recommendation: Contributing resource X yes ~ no  Non-contributing but eligible in another context _ yes J

‘ If the property is not within a district (or the property is a district)  Preparer's Recommendation: Eligible yes no

Criteria: XA B XC D Considerations: A B € D E F G _ None

Documentation on the property/district is presented in: MIHP form; At the Head of the Bay (Blumgart 1996:378)

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination:  (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo)

St. Mary Anne’s Church is a contributing resource of the North East Historic District (CE-1525). The church property includes
the original 1742 brick church, a twentieth-century brick vestry, the churchyard, and the cemetery. The Colonial church is
locally celebrated as being the second oldest parish in Maryland and the oldest extant non-residential structure in North East.
The church and vestry are similar in style and materials giving the property a unified appearance. The cemetery with eighteenth
century graves extends west to the North East River. The impressive property is one of the oldest and most important in North
East having been the nucleus around which the town developed.

The St. Mary Anne's Church is recommended eligible under National Register Criteria A and C as well as under Criteria
Consideration A. The church is an excellent example of a Colonial-era religious structure with very few additions or
alterations. The 1904 bell tower addition was designed to compliment the church's architecture. The history of the structure is
significant. Its 1742 construction makes it one of the earliest remaining churches within the county and the oldest extant non-
residential building in North East. The church's association with Queen Anne of England, from whom it received its charter and
religious ceremonial artifacts, gives it a significant tie to the British crown. The church's pure architectural lines, age, and
interesting history make it one of North East's most significant and treasured structures.

Prepared by: Wendy Zug-Gilbert Date Prepared: 09/27/2002
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CEcCIL COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

SURVEY No.: CE-102

NAME: St. Mary Anne’s Church

LOCATION: northwest corner of S. Main St. & Church Point Rd. , North East, MD
DATE: 1742

ACCESS: Semi-private

DESCRIPTION:

The St. Mary Anne’s Church is located within the NR-eligible North East Historic District (CE-
1525) of which it is a contributing member. The church property is located on the northwest
corner of South Main Street (MD Route 272) and Church Point Road in the mid-eighteenth-
century Chesapeake Bay town of North East. The property extends west from Main Street back
to the North East River and includes the original 1742 brick church, a twentieth-century brick
vestry, the churchyard, and the cemetery. The Colonial-era church is locally celebrated as being
the second oldest parish in Maryland and the oldest extant non-residential structure in North
East. The church and later vestry are similar in style and materials giving the property a unified
appearance. The cemetery, with marked graves dating to the late eighteenth century, extends
west out to the river. The impressive property is one of the oldest and most important in North
East having been the nucleus around which the town developed.

SIGNIFICANCE:

The St. Mary Anne's Church is recommended eligible for listing in the National Register of
Historic Places under Criteria A and C as well as under Criteria Consideration A. From an
architectural standpoint, the church is an excellent example of an early Colonial-era religious
structure with very few additions or alterations. The 1904 bell tower addition is in itself historic
and was designed to compliment the church's architecture. The history of the structure is locally
as well as regionally significant, and for this reason it is recommended eligible under Criterion C
and Criteria Consideration A. Its construction in 1742 makes it one of t the earliest remaining
churches within the county and the oldest extant non-residential building in North East. The
church's association with Queen Anne of England, from whom it received its charter and
religious ceremonial artifacts, give it a significant tie to the British crown. The church's pure
architectural lines, mid-eighteenth-century age, and interesting history make it one of North
East's most significant and treasured structures.



Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No. CE-102
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

1. Name of Pr operty (indicate preferred name)
historic St. Mary Anne's Church
other
2. Location
street and number __ northwest corner of South Main Street and Church Point Road n/a not for publication
city, town North East X vicinity
county Cecil

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Vestry of St. Mary Anne's Church
street and number __ South Main Street telephone n/a
city, town North East state MD zip code 21901

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.  Cecil County Courthouse tax map and parcel _ 400-257
city, town Elkton liber n/a folio n/a

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other:

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district ___ public ___ agriculture ___landscape Contributing Noncontributing
__X__building(s) __X__private ______commerceltrade _____recreation/culture 2 buildings
_ structure ___ both __ defense _ X religion sites
___ site domestic _____social structures
____ object education ____transportation 1 objects
____ funerary _____woark in progress 3 0 Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
____industry other: previously listed in the Inventory

3



7. Description Inventory No. CE-102

Condition
_x_excellent ____deteriorated
___good ___ruins
___fair __ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

The St. Mary Anne’s Church is located within the NR-eligible North East Historic District (CE-1525) of which it is a contributing
member. The church property is located on the northwest corner of South Main Street (MD Route 272) and Church Point Road in the
mid-eighteenth-century Chesapeake Bay town of North East. The property extends west from the main street back to the North East
River and includes the original 1742 brick church, a twentieth-century brick vestry, the churchyard, and the original cemetery. The
Colonial-era church is locally celebrated as being the second oldest parish in Maryland and the oldest extant non-residential structure
in North East. The church and later vestry are similar in style and materials giving the property a unified appearance. The cemetery,
with marked graves dating to the late eighteenth century, extends west out to the river. The impressive property is one of the oldest
and most important in North East having been the nucleus around which the town developed.

The St. Mary Anne’s Church is located on the west side of Main Street, south of the downtown commercial district. The property is
encircled by a high stone wall with iron gates. The church sits on the eastern portion of the property with its fagade fronting south on
Church Point Road. The church building is one-and-a-half stories high and five bays wide constructed of Flemish bond brickwork.
The shingled roof is gambrel with clipped gables and flared ends. Decorative elements of the unpretentious structure include the
original arched paneled shutters, an unusual brick stringcourse over the doorways, and two small stained-glass windows (one on
western elevation above door; one on southern elevation above door in bell tower). Compass-headed windows with double-hung
eight-over-eight sash are topped by an arched four-pane transom, giving the window an appearance of a twelve-over-eight sash. The
southern side entrance was altered in the early twentieth century with the addition of a two-story bell tower in 1904. The Georgian
Revival tower features an octagonal cupola with the bell, small multi-pane circular windows below the cupola, and double entry doors
under a decorative fanlight. The bell tower, constructed in memory of Richard Brookings by his son Robert, perfectly compliments
the building’s simple architecture. A dedication plaque is located above the double entry.

Despite the bell tower’s formal entry, the primary entry of the church is located on the western gable end. This simple arched entry is
topped by a beautiful oval Tiffany stained-glass window and flanked by two windows. The interior of the church is also unpretentious
with the choir loft on the western wall over the entrance and the altar on the eastern wall facing Main Street. The Reverend Joseph
Coudon, rector at St. Mary Anne’s from 1787-92 and the first ordained Episcopal clergyman in the new country, is buried on the
south side of altar within the church (Miller 1949:79).

The vestry is located adjacent to the church to the west with a concrete walkway linking the buildings. The vestry was constructed in
the 1960s in a style complimentary to the church’s architecture. The building is a small one-and-a-half-story, single-bay structure of
brick with a pent roof on the gable ends. Windows on the side elevations are double-hung six-over-nine sash. The interior of the
building is simple with woodwork and plastered walls that mirror that of the older church. The vestry consists of a core meeting room

with a smaller adjacent changing room.

The cemetery encircles the church on all directions. The older portions of the cemetery are located within the immediate churchyard
with more recent burials fanning out and extending west toward the North East River. A section of crude uninscribed stones is located
off the western side of the vestry. Local history states that the churchyard holds many graves of the early Susquehannocks as well as
unmarked graves of early colonists, indicating that the plot was the sight of burials as early as the seventeenth century (Miller
1949:79). Members of many of the area’s earliest and most prominent families are buried in the churchyard. The cemetery has been

continually used for burials up through the twentieth century.



8. Significance Inventory No. CE-102

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__1600-1699 __ agriculture __economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
X _1700-1799 __archeology __ education __industry __ philosophy
X 1800-1899 X architecture __ engineering __invention __ politics/government
__1900-1999 __art __ entertainment/ __landscape architecture X religion
__2000- ___ commerce recreation _ law __ science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __literature __social history
__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __transportation
__ conservation settlement __ military __ other:
Specific dates n/a Architect/Builder unknown

Construction dates 1742 (initial construction); 1904 (bell tower); 1960s (vestry)

Evaluation for:

X National Register Maryland Register not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

The St. Mary Anne's Church is recommended eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places under Criteria A and C as
well as under Criteria Consideration A. From an architectural standpoint, the church is an excellent example of an early Colonial-era
religious structure with very few additions or alterations. The 1904 bell tower addition is in itself historic and was designed to
compliment the church's architecture. The history of the structure is locally as well as regionally significant, and for this reason it is
recommended eligible under Criterion C and Criteria Consideration A. Its construction in 1742 makes it one of t the earliest
remaining churches within the county and the oldest extant non-residential building in North East. The church's association with
Queen Anne of England, from whom it received its charter and religious ceremonial artifacts, give it a significant tie to the British
crown. The church's pure architectural lines, mid-eighteenth-century age, and interesting history make it one of North East's most
significant and treasured structures.

Prior to the colonial inhabitation of the east bank of the North East River in the area of North East, Native American Susquehannocks
hunted and fished the land. By the latter part of the seventeenth century, the Shawanese established a village along the river in the
southern part of the current North East borough (Four Water Front Towns 1938). Colonial settlement in the area began in the early
eighteenth century. To meet the religious needs of the growing population, the General Assembly passed an act erecting the parish of
North Elk in 1706 (Johnston 1989:217). The North Elk Parish encompassed the part of the county north of the Elk River and east of
the Susquehanna River. A log church was constructed in the area along the road south to Turkey Point. This early church, named St.
Mary’s, served a mixed population of different religions and had only an annual revenue of about 40£ (Johnston 1989:217). A
petition to England’s Queen Anne for money and a preacher resulted in her gift of a large Bible (printed at Oxford in 1716 by John
Baskett, printer to the King’s Most Excellent Majesty and the University), a prayer book, and a silver communion service (made in
London by Folkingham in 1717) (Miller 1949:79). In appreciation, the parish renamed the church, St. Mary Anne’s.

In 1742, an act authorizing an 800£ levy was passed that enabled the parish to erect a permanent church and vestryhouse. The new
church, the current structure, was built on the same property as the original church. A local history suggests that Samuel Gilpin may
have done the carpentry work on both buildings since payment records to Gilpin were found in early church records (Johnston
1989:220). The interrelated disciplines of religion and education were combined through the opening of a school in the vestryhouse

by Donminie Fanning in 1752.

In 1904, Robert Brookings erected a bell tower on the church’s southern elevation in memory of his father S. Richard Brookings. The
bell tower, which formed the church’s new entry, was constructed in a Georgian Revival style that complimented the colonial
architecture of the original structure. A dedication plaque, located above the double entry doors, reads: “To the glory of God and in
memory of S. Richard Brookings, this tower is erected by his son Robert S. Brookings, A.D. 1904”.

The significance of the church’s architecture was recognized in 1936 with its documentation for the Historic American Building
Survey (HABS) (Blumgart 1996:378)..



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. CE-102

Blumgart, Pamela James
1996 At the Head of the Bay — A Cultural and Architectural History of Cecil County, Maryland. The Cecil County Historical

Trust, Inc., Elkton, MD and the Maryland Historical Society Press, Crownsville, MD.

Ewing, Jean S.
nd Maryland Historical Trust Worksheet and Nomination Form for St. Mary Anne’s Church, North East.

(continued)

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property approximately 2.5acre
Acreage of historical setting n/a
Quadrangle name North East, MD Quadrangle scale: _1:24.000

Verbal boundary description and justification

Beginning at the northwest corner of the intersection of South Main Street and Church Point Road (being the lot’s southeast
corner), running north along the west side of South Main Street for approximately 220 feet to a point; then proceeding west for
approximately 490 feet to a point on the east bank of the North East River; then proceeding southwest along the east bank of side
river for approximately 180 feet to a point; then proceeding east along the north side of Church Point Road for approximately 600
feet to the intersection of South Main Street and said road, which is the point of beginning. Containing an area of approximately

2.5 acres.

The boundary description was drawn to include the southern portion of Tax Parcel 257, north of Church Point Road, on Cecil
County Tax Map 401. The boundary was drawn to encompass the church, vestry, and cemetery associated with this property.

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitle Wendy Zug-Gilbert / Principal Investigator

organization Archeaological & Historical Consultants, Inc. date November 2000
street & number 101 N. Pennsylvania Ave., PO Box 482 telephone (814) 364-2135
city or town Centre Hall state PA

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600



Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Inventory of inventory No. CE-102
Historic Properties Form

St. Mary Anne’s Church

Continuation Sheet

Number 9 Page 1

9. Major Bibliographical References (continued)
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ST. MARY ANNE’S CHURCH (CE-102)
FROM SANBORN 1833




L

[ m— e

-~

L
Church St..
o
S
a
8
p=
Thomas Ave,
]
KEY
[[[]]] = Eligible Historic Structure
[:] = Other Extant Structure
l V —-—-= = Historic Property Boundary
? 100 0 30
I { - : m
feet meters

ST. MARY ANNE’S CHURCH (CE-102)
NORTH EAST BOROUGH, CECIL COUNTY, MARYLAND
SITE PLAN




St. Mary Anne’s Church INVENTORY No. CE-102

PRESERVATION VISION 2000: THE MARYLAND PLAN
STATEWIDE HISTORIC CONTEXTS

I. GEOGRAPHIC REGION:

X EASTERN SHORE (ALL EASTERN SHORE COUNTIES AND CECIL)
WESTERN SHORE (ANNE ARUNDEL, CALVERT, CHARLES, PRINCE GEORGE’S, ST. MARY’S)
PIEDMONT (BALTIMORE CITY, BALTIMORE, CARROLL, FREDERICK, HARFORD,, HOWARD,

MONTGOMERY)
WESTERN MARYLAND (ALLEGANY, GARRETT, WASHINGTON)

I1. CHRONOLOGICAL/DEVELOPMENTAL PERIODS:

X RURAL AGRARIAN INTENSIFICATION (A.D. 1680-1815)
AGRICULTURAL-INDUSTRIAL TRANSITION (A.D. 1815-1870)
INDUSTRIAL/URBAN DOMINANCE (A.D. 1870-1930)
MODERN PERIOD (A.D. 1930-PRESENT)
UNKNOWN PERIOD ( PREHISTORIC; HISTORIC)

II. HisToORIC PERIOD THEMES:

AGRICULTURE
ARCHITECTURE, LANDSCAPE, ARCHITECTURE, AND COMMUNITY PLANNING

EcoNOMIC (COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL)
GOVERNMENT/LAW
MILITARY

X RELIGION
SOCIAL/EDUCATIONAL/CULTURAL
TRANSPORTATION

V. RESOURCE TYPE:

CATEGORY: building

HisTORIC ENVIRONMENT:  bayside village

HISTORIC FUNCTION(S) AND Usg(s): religious (church)
KNOWN DESIGN SOURCE: none
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APHICAL DATA
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